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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2010

The directors present their Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements of the Company (WFS)
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities

The Company’s pnincipal activities during 2010 were the provision of consumer credit to non-standard
customers In 2009, the Company significantly reduced 1ts lending volumes and closed 1ts car retail operation
Throughout 2010, the Company’s main focus was on collecting out 1ts loan book, although 1ts home collected
credit business continues to lend to new and exisung customers

Business review
The directors report a loss 1n the year before tax from continuing operations of £189 7 muillion (2009 pre tax
loss £639 5 million)

Dunng 2010, the Company compnrised Welcome Finance (Welcome) and Shopacheck Dunng the year Welcome
continued to collect out 1ts customer loan book, with cash collectons 1n 2010 of £499 5 mullion (2009 £730 9
muliton) 2010 has also seen Shopacheck continue to make progress n developing its business with customers at 31
December 2010 amountung to 234,000 (2009 227,000} and the business returmng to profitabihty

The main causes of the loss reported 1n the 2010 results are the loan loss charge together with the reduction 1n
revenue as a result of the decision to stop lending to new customers in 2009 The loan loss charge for the year was
£162 8 nmullton (2009 £760 5 nullion) and total customers’ net loans and receivables were £733 2 million (2009
£1,205 8 mullion) Our current estimate of the fair value of the Company’s loans and receivables 1s £538 3 mullion
at 31 December 2010 (2009 £894 9 million), which 1s calculated by discounting expected future cash flows from
the loans and recervables at 8 0% per annum (2009 8 4%), being the Cattles group’s cost of capital plus the costs of
collecuon effective at the reporting date  Loans and recervables have continued to impair post year end

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are contamed 1n note 25 to the financial staterments and
this report below

Standstill and equalisation agreement

On 25 November 2009, Cattles Limuted (formerly Cattles plc) (Cattles), the Company’s ultimate parent
company thronghout 2010, announced that 1t had agreed a formal Standsull and Equalisation Agreement (SEA)
with certain of 1ts key financial creditors At the same tume, Cattles also agreed certain modifications to the
terms of 1ts bank facihues, private placement notes and, subsequently, its bonds

The sigung of the SEA and these modifications were expected to improve the hkelihood of Cattles achieving
1ts restructuring objectives, namely

* to stabilise the financial position of Cattles and 1ts subsidianies (the Group), and
* agamst that background, to continue discussions with Cattles’ key financial creditors with a view to
agreeing a consensual restructuring of the Group

The SEA was signed by Cattles, the Company, certain other members of the Group and, among others, lenders
of key syndicated and bilateral facilities to Catitles (Banks), guaranteed hedging counterparties (Guaranteed
Hedging Counterparties), unguaranteed hedging counterparties (Unguaranteed Hedging Counterparties) and
holders of pnivate placement notes 1ssued by Cattles (Noteholders)

The SEA became fully effective on 17 December 2009 (the Effective Date) following the formal approval of
the amendments to the bonds by holders of the 2014 and 2017 bends (Bendholders)

The key provisions of the SEA included

e Standstill. A formal agreement by the key financial creditors to ‘stand suil” and therefore agree not to
take enforcement action against Cattles, the Company or other members of the Group for a lirited
penod of time (see below)

e Cash distmbutions: Obliganons on the Company to distribute the majority of cash generated by the
Group to the key financial creditors (Interim Distnbutions), subject to the rghi of the Company to
forecast and retain a provision for working capital requirements and other conungencies The SEA
expressly provided that this forecast would be prepared on a conservative basis to provide
ongoing hquidity




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Standstill and equalisation agreement (continued)
¢ Cash management: Obligations on Cattles, the Company and other members of the Group to ensure
that the majonty of cash generated by the Group, which was subject to nghts of set off 1n favour of
certain key financial creditors, continued to be maintained 1n bank accounts that were subject to such
nghts of set off in favour of such key financial creditors

The penod of standsull was linked to the hugation process relating to certain intra-group subordination
arrangements (as set out 1n Cattles” announcement of i1 August 2009) (the Litagation) The Banks, the
Noteholders and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparuies were required to stand still during an 1utial standsull
penod from (and including) the Effective Date and ending on the earhier of

(1) 30 June 2011,

() the date on which the relative entittements of the crediters to Intenm Distributions paid after the
conclus:on of the Liugation were finally determuned by the Entity Prionity Accountant, and

(in) the occurrence of the date on which the SEA 1s terminated,

unless the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties whose claims against the Group represent at least
75% of the aggregate claims of the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties against the Group and
the Noteholders whose claims against the Group represent at least 75% of the aggregate claims of the
Noteholders against the Group decide that the standstill apphcable to the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging
Counterparties and the Noteholders should be termunated

Duning the penod after 30 June 2011 or after the date on which the relative entitlements of the creditors to
Intenim Distributions paid after the conclusion of the Litigauon have been finally determined by the Enuty
Prienity Accountant, the standsull can be terminated (1} 1n the case of the standstill applicable to the Banks and
Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties, by the Banks and Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties whose claims
aganst the Group represent at least 75% of the aggregate claims of the Banks and Guaranteed Hedging
Counterparties against the Group, and (u) 1n the case of the Noteholders, by the Noteholders whose claims
against the Group represent at least 75% of the aggregate claims of the Noteholders against the Group

With respect to the Bondholders and the Unguaranteed Hedging Counterparties, the imtial standstll penod
{which began on the Effective Date) was extended following the appeal of the first insiance judgement to the
Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal heanng was on 12 May 2010 and judgement was handed down on 13
May 2010

A further automatic extension of such standstll period occurred following the appeal of the Court of Appeal
Judgement to the Supreme Court On 26 July 2010, the Supreme Court refused permssion to appeal

The first cash distnbution made by the Company 1n accordance with the SEA took place in December 2009
The utial distnbution, which represented the majonty of the net cash generated by the Group up to 17
December 2009, amounted to £384 7 mullion Further distnbutions amounting, 1n aggregate, to £229 9 mullion
were made on a monthly basis from December 2009 up to, and including, July 2010 Under the terms of the
SEA, on 26 July 2010, the date on which the Supreme Court ordered that permussion to appeal the Court of
Appeal’s decision be refused, Intenim Distributions were temporarily suspended pending final determination by
the Entity Pnionty Accountant of the relatve entitlements of the creditors to Interim Distnbutions

The Enuty Prionty Accountant 1ssued their Final Determination on 18 February 2011

Under the terms of the SEA, the standstill was termunated with effect from 2 March 2011, the date that the
restructuring became effective Details of the restructunng are set out below

Restructuring

As noted above, on 25 November 2009, 1t was announced that Cattles had agreed the SEA with certain of 1ts
key financial creditors, and that this should improve the hkelihood of 1t achieving its restructuring objectrves
After that date, Cattles and the Company continued to engage 1n discussions with representatives of its key
financial creditors 1n order to progress proposals for a restructuning

On 29 November 2010, it was announced that Cattles had received sufficient support from its key financial
creditors to enable 1t to launch a restructuning of the Group and that Cattles, the Company, certain other
members of the Group and certain of their respective key financial creditors had entered into a restructunng
lock-up agreement to support a restructurning of the Group 1n the following way
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Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Restructuring (continued)

e (Cattles proposed a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the Compares Act 2006 (a scheme) to its
shareholders, pursuant to which the shares in Cattles would be acquired by Bovess Limited (Bovess)
Under the terms of that scheme, Cattles shareholders would receive 1p 1n cash for each Cattles share
held by them

¢ Cattles and the Company also each proposed a scheme to certain of their respective creditors  Pursuant
to those schemes, the claims of those creditors would be compromused 1n order to facilitate a salvent
restructuring of Cattles and the Company

* Another member of the Group, Ewbanks Mail Order Limited (Ewbanks), proposed a scheme to certain
of 1ts creditors, pursuant to which the guarantee obligations of it and certain other members of the Group
would be compromised 1n order to facilitate a solvent restructuring of those entities

¢ Further, Cattles, the Company and certain other members of the Group entered mto bilateral agreements
with certain other creditors (for example, the pension trustee) in order to facilitate the solvent
restructuring

Each scheme and bilateral agreement was subject to obtaiung the necessary approvals and 1t was necessary to
satisfy certain conditions precedent pnor to the solvent restructuring becoming fully and finally effectnve 1n
accordance with its terms

Pursuant to the restructuring lock-up agreement, the key financial creditors that are party to that agreement
conditionally agreed wath Cattles, the Company and certain other Group members to vote in favour of the
schemes to be proposed to them and promptly to take all actions which they are reasonably requested 1o take, 1n
order to support, facilitate, implement or otherwise give effect to the solvent restructunng Therefore, the
conclusion was drawn that there was a reasonable expectation that the necessary approvals for the schemes to
be proposed to the creditors of Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks would be obtained

On 21 December 2010, Cartles announced the following 1n respect of each of the schemes of arrangement

o Catiles Shareholder Scheme

Cattles was posting a circular to its shareholders (the Shareholder Scheme Document) containing,
amongst other things, the full terms and conditions of the Cattles Shareholder Scheme, an explanatory
statement, an anticipated umetable of principal events and details of the actions to be taken by Cattles
shareholders The Shareholder Scheme Document also contamed notice of the Court-convened
shareholder meeting (the Court Meeting) and the general meeting of shareholders (the General Meeting) ‘
at whach Cattles shareholders could vote on the Cattles Shareholder Scheme Both the Court Meeting ‘
and the General Meeting would be held on 31 January 2011

®  Catles Creditor Scheme and the WFS Creditor Scheme \
Cattles and the Company were posting a joint letter to certain of their creditors This letter attached ‘
formal notice that Court-convened meetngs of the creditors of Cattles and of the Company 1o vote on ‘
the Cattles Creditor Scheme and the WFS Creditor Scheme respectively would be held on 1 February
2011

¢ Ewbanks Scheme ‘
Ewbanks was posting to certain of its creditors a document containing the full terms of the Ewbanks
Scheme and an explanatory statement to the Ewbanks Scheme The Court-convened meetings of the
creditors of Ewbanks to vote on the Ewbanks Scheme would be held on 1 February 2011

On 31 January 2011, Cattles announced that, at both a Court Meeting and a General Meeting of Cattles
Shareholders held earlier that day 1n connection with the recommended acquisition of Cattles by Bovess by way
of a scheme, both resolutions were passed by the requisite majonties of Cattles Shareholders

On 1 February 2011, Cattles announced that, at the Court-convened meetings of the creditors of Cattles, the
Company and Ewbanks held earher that day 1n cennection with the proposed restructunings of Cattles, the
Company and Ewbanks by way of schemes, all the necessary resolutions were passed by the relevant classes of
thetr respective creditors by the requsite majonties Completion of the restructunng remained subject to the
satisfaction of other conditions, including the Court sanctioming ail of the schemes

On 21 February 2011, the heanng at the High Court of Justice of England and Wales (the Court) to sanction all
of the schemes commenced and was adjourned until 28 February 2011
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Restructuring (continued)

On 28 February 2011, Cattles announced that the Court had sanctioned the scheme to effect the recommended
proposal for the acquisinon of Cattles by Bovess and sancuoned the schemes of arrangement between each of
Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks and certain of their respecuve creditors  All of these schemes were
expected to become effective shortly, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions

On 2 March 2011 (Scheme Effective Date), Cattles announced that all such schemes had become effective In
addition, an apphcation had been made to the UK Lasting Authonty requesting the cancellation of the listing of
Cattles shares on the Official List as well as trading of Cattles shares on the London Stock Exchange's main
market for hsted securiies Cancellation was expected to take place by 8 00 am on Monday 7 March 2011
The consideration of 1p per Cattles share to be paid by Bovess to Cattles shareholders pursuant to the
acquisiion was expected to be despatched (in the case of certificated holders of Cattles shares) or settled 1n
CREST (in the case of uncertificated holders of Cattles shares) by 16 March 2011

On 7 March 2011, Cattles’ shares were de-listed from the London Stock Exchange and Cattles was re-registered
as a private imiuted company On 5 Apnl 2011 Cattles’ debt secunues (bonds) were de-hsted

Overview of Restructuring
The restructuning that became effective on 2 March 2011 (Scheme Effective Date) included the following four
schemes, each of which 1s summansed below

(a) the Cattles Shareholder Scheme,
(b) the Cattles Creditor Scheme,

(c)y the WFS Scheme, and

(d) the Co-guarantors Creditor Scheme

Further, 1t included an agreement with the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS), and a
comprormuse with the Pension Trustee, each of which 1s summansed below

The Cattles Shareholder Scheme

The purpose of the Cattles Shareholder Scheme was to transfer ownership of 100% of the shares of Cattles to
Bovess, to de-list the shares from the main market of the London Stock Exchange and to re-register Cattles as a
private linited company

Bovess 15 a special purpose vehicle established for the purposes of implementing the restructuring and 1s
controlled by Bovess Holding Limited (Bovess Holdco), which 1s also a special purpose vehicle whose shares
are held by a discretionary trust for general chantable purposes Both Bovess and Bovess Holdco were
established and are managed by Structured Finance Management Lumtted (SFM), a specialist corporate services
provider that was engaged 1n connection with the restructuring

Bovess, by way of the Cattles Shareholder Scheme, acquired the 1ssued and to be 1ssued shares of Cattles for a
consideration of Ip per share

In order to become effective, the Cattles Shareholder Scheme had to be approved by 2 majority in number of the
shareholders present and voting at a Court-convened shareholder meeting (either 1n person or by proxy),
representing not less than 75% in value of the shares voted at the meeting In addition, a special resolution
necessary to implement the Catties Shareholder Scheme and the related reduction of capital of Cattles had 1o be
passed by shareholders at a general meeting of 1ts shareholders

Following the Court-convened meeting and the general meeting, the Cattles Shareholder Scheme had to be
sanctioned by the Court The Cattles Shareholder Scheme became effective only once the Court orders
sanctioning the Cattles Shareholder Scheme and confirming the related reduction of capital were delivered to
the Registrar of Companies
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Restructunng (continued)

The Cattles Board would not deliver the Court orders sanctioning the Cattles Shareholder Scheme to the
Registrar of Compares unless and unuil (1) the FSA approved, or had been deemed o approve, the indirect
change of control of the Company resulting from the acquisition of Cattles by Bovess, (1) the WFS Scheme
became effective 1 accordance with 1ts terms, and (11) the Cattles Creditor Scheme was sanctioned by the
Court and the Cattles Board confirmed that, subject to no Insolvency Event (as defined 1n the Cattles
Shareholder Scheme) having occurred 1n relation to Cattles, the Court order sanctiomng the Cattles Creditor
Scheme would be delivered to the Registrar of Companies immed:ately upon the WFS Scheme having become
effectuve

Upon the Cattles Shareholder Scheme becomung effective, Bovess became the owner of 100% of the shares in
Cattles and shortly thereafter the shares were de-listed from the London Stock Exchange

The Cattles Shareholder Scheme gave Cattles’ creditors certainty as to the ownership of Cattles without them
having to take direct ownership themselves It also had the benefit of giving Cattles’ shareholders some value
for thear shares and allowing them to crystallise any capital gains tax losses they may have incurred In addition,
there were advantages in Cattles being de-listed from the London Stock Exchange (and thereby no longer
having to comply wath the on-going comphance requirements of a histed company) and re-registering as a
prnivate company, providing a more appropnate structure for the Group to maximuse cash collections, achieve
solvency and, where appropnate, commence solvent hiquidations

An amount of £5 3 million was paid by the Company 1nto an account 1n the name of Bovess, which Bovess
used to satisfy the payment of the 1p per share cash consideration due to Cattles’ shareholders under the Cattles
Shareholder Scheme

The Company also agreed 1o pay the fees, costs and expenses which SFM and Bovess incurred 1n connection
with the Cattles Shareholder Scheme up until the point it became effective These were capped at £2 mllion,
based on estimates provided by SFM and Bovess

A further amount of £2,500,200 was paid by the Company 1nto an account 1n the name of Bovess This amount
was calculated on the basis of the expected ten year term (with no early termination) of SFM's appointment as
cotporate services provider If SFM's appowntment as corporate services provider to each of Bovess and Bovess
Holdco 1is termuinated, SFM 1s requured to procure that Bovess returns unused funds to the Company after
deducting certain expenses incurred (and estmated to be incurred) by SFM in relation to such termination

The Caules Credutor Scheme

In summary, the purpose of the Cattles Creditor Scheme was to compronuse the claims of certain creditors of
Cattles 1n order to achueve a better return on the claims of Cattles Scheme Creditors than they would obtain on
an admimistratton or hquidation of Cattles A number of creditors were excluded from the Cattles Creditor
Scheme and conunued to be patd 1n full outside of the Cattles Creditor Scheme

The compromse of the claims of certain creditors of Cattles will be reflected 1n the financial statements of
Catiles post-Scheme Effective Date 1n 2011 and will give nise to a substantial reduction 1n the value of Cattles’
habihties

In broad terms, the assets available for distribution to the Catiles Scheme Creditors when the Cattles Creditor
Scheme became effective compnsed

(a)  £49 mullion, paid by the Company to Cattles,

(b) approximately £5 mllien projected to be received from the intended future disposal of a property owned
by Cattles Properties (Ruddington) Limited, which 1s currently occupied by the Company,

(c) approximately £2 mmllion i cash held by Cattles prior to the scheme becomung effective, and

(d) the proceeds of any successful claims against third partes (Outward Claims) that Cattles may have,

1 each case subject to the costs of admumistening the Cattles Creditor Scheme and realising Cattles’ assets,
ncluding any costs incurred 1n pursuing any Outward Claims
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Restructuring (continued)
In certain circumstances the Cattles Creditor Scheme may be ended early Thus 1s known as a Scheme Reversion
The following are Scheme Reversion Decision Events

(a) Scheme Reversion occurnng 1n respect of the WFS Scheme, and
(b) anInsolvency Event occumng 1n respect of Cattles after 2 June 2011

Full details of the Scheme Reversion Decision Events are set out in the Cattles Creditor Scheme

If a Scheme Reversion Decision Event occurs, the Scheme Supervisors will call a meeting of Cattles Scheme
Creditors to consider and decide whether to (1) take no action, (11) agree any remedial propesals, or (111) confirm
that a Scheme Reversion should occur

On a Scheme Reversion, the Cattles Creditor Scheme will come to an end and, subject to certain exceptions, the
provistons of the Cattles Creditor Scheme will cease to be binding on both Cattles and the Cattles Scheme
Creditors

The WFS Scheme

The purpose of the WFS Scheme was to compromuse the claims of certain creditors of the Company 1n order to
achieve a better return on the claims of WFS Scheme Creditors than they would obtamn on an admurustration of
the Company A number of creditors were excluded from the WFS Scheme and continued to be paid 1n full
outside of the WFS Scheme

The compromuse of the claims of certain creditors of the Company wiil be reflected inthe financial statements
of the Company post-Scheme Effective Date 1n 2011 and wali give nise to a substantial reduction 1n the value of
the Company’s Liabilittes

In broad terms, the assets available for distribution to the WFS Scheme Creditors when the WFS Scheme
became effective compnse

(a) the proceeds of future net cash collections of the Company’s Welcome business, as well as any future
sale of the remainng loan book,

(b) therealisable value of the Company’s Shopacheck business,

(c) the proceeds of any successful OQutward Claims that the Company may have, and

(d) any residual assets held by the Company at the end of the WFS Scheme,

less the costs of admimistening the WFS Scheme and realising the Company’s assets, including any costs

incurred 1n pursutng any Outward Claims

In certain circumstances the WFS Scheme 1s permatted to end early This 1s known as 2 Scheme Reversion
There are a number of Scheme Reversion Decision Events, full details of which are set out in the WFS Scheme

If a Scheme Reversion Decision Event cccurs, the Scheme Supervisors will call a meeung of WFS’s Scheme
Creditors to consider and decide whether to (1) take no action, (n) agree any remechal proposals, or (11) confirm
that a Scheme Reversion should occur

On a Scheme Reverston, the WFS Scheme will come to an end and, subject to certain exceptions, the provisions
of the WFS Scheme will cease to be binding on both WFS and the WFS Scheme Creditors

Co-guarantors Creditor Scheme
The Co-guarantors Creditor Scheme compnsed

(a} the Ewbanks Scheme,

(b} adeed of compromise between a number of Group companes which had given guarantees under a
number of bank facility agreements and note agreements, and the creditors to whom they owe the
relevant guarantee obligations (referred to as ‘the Co-guarantors Compromuse Deed’), and

(¢} adeed of compronuse, release and distribution between The Lewis Group Limited (TLG), the other
Guarantor Companues, the Pension Trustee (1f applicable), and the creditors to whom TLG owed the
relevant guarantee cbliganions (referred to as ‘the TLG Distnibution Deed’)
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Restructuring (continued)

The Ewbanks Scheme provided for the compromuse of Ewbanks® habilies to the Guaranteed Creditors and
provided Ewbanks with a power of attorney to sign the Co-guarantors Compromuse Deed and the TLG
Distribution Deed on behalf of each of the Co-guarantor Scheme Creditors

Under the Co-guarantors Creditor Scheme, each of the Guarantor Compantes’ Guarantor Obligations were
litmited to an amount equal to 1ts net assets The Guarantor Compantes had guaranteed Cattles’ debt under a
number of bank facihity agreements and note agreernents, and the Guarantor Compantes owed Guarantor
Obligations to different Guaranteed Creditors

The Guarantor Companies with matenal assets will realise those assets for the benefit of the financial creditors
of Cattles (being Lenders and Noteholders) to whom the Guarantor Compames have provided guarantees 1n
respect of Cattles’ debt (the Guaranteed Creditors)

In most cases this will mean realising their assets through asset sales and then making pro rata payments to their
respective Guaranteed Creditors 1n respect of thewr Guarantor Obligations after providing 1n full for all other
creditors However, TL.G and C L. Finance Limuted (CLF), acting together, have a business which continues to
be viable and generate an income It 15 mtended to keep this business operating with a view to a sale 1n the
future TLG and CLF’s respective Guaranteed Creditors would benefit from the proceeds of any such sale In
the meantime, the TLG Dhstnbuuon Deed and the Ce-guarantors Compromse Deed provide for penodic
payments to be made by TLG and CLF to theirr Guaranteed Creditors after providing in full for all other
creditors

The Lewis Group business, which 1s run by TLG and CLF, 15 a contingent debt collection business Having
previously purchased debt for 1ts own account, The Lewis Group business has now altered 1ts strategy to focus
on contingent debt collection In order to retain existing mandates and continue to win new mandates for
contingent debt collection, TLG needs to have a positive balance sheet and be creditworthy The compromuse
effected by the TLG Distnbution Deed was intended to assist in meeting this imperative

The Co-guarantor Compromuse Deed also provides for the release of certain obligations owed between the
Guarantor Companies, but the pnmary purpose of the Co-guarantors Creditor Scheme 1s to provide a more
efficient means of realising the assets available to the Guaranteed Creditors than would be provided by a formal
msclvency process It s intended to do this by

(a) assisung in preventing muluple insolvencies in the Group and thereby assisting in providing to all of the
Ewbanks Scheme Creditors {who are all also WFS Scheme Creditors and Cattles Scheme Creditors) the
benefits of the restructunng,

(b) enabling The Lewis Group business to continue to generate funds for the benefit of TLG and CLF
creditors and, subsequently, to allow that business 10 be sold for the benefit of the same creditors, and

(c) providing for the realisation of the assets of each of the Guarantor Companies which have matenal assets
and the distnbution of those assets to those companies’ Guaranteed Creditors

Payment Protection Insurance (PPI)

Under an agreement reached between the FSCS and the Company, the FSCS wiil pay PPI-related claims of
eligible PPI Claimants ansing on or after 14 January 2005, in return for certain payments totatling £90 milhon
from the Company (which will 1n effect be repaid to the Company to the extent that 1t1s not used by the FSCS
to pay compensation and costs) Under the terms of the PPI agreement, the Company must make ‘top-up’
payments to the FSCS 1n addition to the £90 mullion if the Company meets or exceeds a business plan As part
of the agreement reached with the FSCS, the Company will contact all customers 1t believes are eligible PPI
claimants In addition, pursuant to the terms of the WFS Scheme, the Company has established a trust for the
purpose of meeting the cash redress costs of all vahd claims anticipated to be made 1n respect of PPI sold prior
to 14 January 2005

Compromise with Pension Trustee

Under a compromuse agreement, all claims of the Pension Trustee against Cattles, the Company and TLG
(including the Group’s Section 75 Debt) in respect of the Pension Fund, were compromsed for a nornal
payment of £]1 for each of Cattles, the Company and TLG
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Restructuring (continued)

In return for compromusing 1ts claims pursuant to the Pension Compromuse, the Pension Trustee became a
Scheme Creditor (and hence will recerve pro rata payments) 1n each of the Cattles Creditor Scheme and the
WES Scheme, and will exther receive pro rata payments from TLG 1n accordance with the terms of the Co-
guarantors Creditor Scheme or (if agreed between TLG and the Pension Trustee) a lump sum compromse
payment (calculated on a pro rata basis) For the purposes of any pro rata payments, the debts owed to the
Pension Trustee by each of Cattles, the Company and TLG will be amounts equal to each company’s notional
Section 75 Debt Alternatively, (in respect of TLG only) the pro rata lump sum may be based on the pension
scheme actvary’s estimate of the Section 75 Debt applicable to TLG as at 25 August 2010, if so agreed with the
Pension Trustee

Pensions Regulator and (in the case of the regulated apportionment arrangement only) Pension Protection Fund
approval were conditions precedent to the compromuse (and the restructuring) becomung effective

The Employee Retention Fund

In December 2010, the Company established the Employee Retention Fund 1n order o secure the payment of
specified employee benefits that the Company 1s contractually obliged to pay to its employees The Company
maintains an account with Clydesdale Bank plc that holds the nng-fenced Employee Retention Fund cash The
Company has granted secunty over this account 1n favour of Welcome Finance Group Limited, another Group
company, which holds the benefit of such secunty on trust for the relevant employees In the event that the
Company becomes 1nsolvent and does not pay the employee benefits as required, Welcome Finance Group
Limuted will be able to enforce the secunty and apply the proceeds of enforcement against certain outstanding
employee benefits amounts

The amount to be held 1n the Employee Retention Fund 1s reviewed on a quarterly basis to reflect the amount of
employee benefits required to be collaterahsed Any surplus amount in the Employee Retention Fund 1s
transferred to accounts of the Company held with The Royal Bank of Scottand plc or HSBC Bank plc The
Company 1s obliged to top up the Employee Retention Fund to the extent that employee benefits required to be
collateralised have increased since the last quarterly review date, subject to a maximum of £18 millhion

The Employee Retention Fund was established to enable the Company to demonstrate to 1ts employees that it
has taken steps to ensure that their contractual benefits that would not be protected by the statutory National
Insurance Fund will nonetheless be protected in the event of the Company’s insolvency The Company’s
management were concerned that they would be unable to retain key staff with a consequent matenal
impairment of cash collections

Going concern basis

On 2 March 2011 (Scheme Effective Date), Cattles announced that the scheme of arrangement to effect the
recommended proposal for the acquisition of Cattles by Bovess had become effective Cattles also announced
that the schemes of arrangement between each of Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks and certain of their
respective creditors had become effective

Following Scheme Effecuve Date, Cattles and a number of 1ts subsidianes, including the Company, now have to
operate under the terms of the schemes As part of the restructuring discussions, Cattles and 1ts subsidianes
agreed a medium-term financial plan with their key financial creditors The schemes include a number of
covenants, which are measured against this medium-term plan, some of whuch if breached would lead to Scheme
Reversion

At 31 December 2010, the Company owed an inter-company hability to Cattles of £2 4 bilion (2009 £2 7
bill:on) However, at that date, Cattles was also party to the standstill contained within the SEA and Cattles had
agreed not to demand repayment of the 1nter-company hability while the SEA continved Further, as part of the
WFS Scheme, Cattles agreed to compromuse the inter-company hiability for £49 nulhon

As part of the WES Scheme, the Company has established a trust of £20 mithion for the purpose of meeting the
cash redress costs of all valid claims ant:cipated to be made in respect of PPI sold pror to 14 January 2005 This
trust can be increased to £22 5 mullion with the approval of the Scheme Supervisor There 1s a covenant 1n the
WES Scheme that the Company may not, without the prior consent of the Creditors Comnuttee, pay any amount
m respect of pre 14 Januvary 2005 PPI habshiuies 1n excess of £22 5 mullion, which would be a Scheme Reversion
event




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The WFS Scheme includes a covenant in respect of Shopacheck’s Earmings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation (EBITDA) as a percentage of gross receivables This will normally be tested on a quarterly
basis, based on a 12 month roiling penod for EBITDA However, the first testing pened as at 31 October 2011
will be for a shorter pertod and it 15 anticipated that given Shopacheck 1s a seasonal business 1t will not meet the
covenant for this imnal penod Consequently, under the WFS Scheme, the Company wil! prepare a new cash
flow forecast and valuation for approval by the Scheme Supervasor and Creditors Comnuttee Importantly, a
breach of the EBITDA to gross receivables covenant 1s not a Scheme Reversion event

The directors continue to beheve the Company will not cease trad:ng 1n the foreseeable future, as Welcome
focuses on collecting out 1ts customers” loans, with Shopacheck continuing to trade as normal

After making enquiries regarding the circumstances outhned above, the directors have concluded that based on
1ts current medivm-term plan there 15 currently no reason why the Company will not meet the covenants that lead
to a Scheme Reversion contained 1n the schemes and the directors have a reascnable expectation that the
Company can continue to pay 1ts operational debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis 1n prepanng the Financial Statements The Financial Statements do not
include the adjustments that would result 1f the Company were unable to continue as a going concern

Key performance indicators
The key performance measures are summansed below

2010 2009
Welcome cash collections (£m) 499.5 7309
Welcome roll rates (%) 41 55
Loan loss charge (£m) 162.8 760 5
Staff and operating costs (£m) 174.1 2185

Roll rates relate to the average monthly percentage of up-to-date accounts moving 1nto any stage of arrears

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of an ordinary dividend (2009 £ml) or dividends on any of the
preference shares (2009 £ml)

Directors
The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the Financial
Statements were

M A Young

R D East {appointed 7 March 2011)

P J Felton-Snuth (appointed 29 June 2010, resigned 6 Apnil 2011)
J M Bniggs (appomted 5 May 2011)

J R Drummond Smith

J P Mackan (resigned 28 June 2010)

FR Dee

D Lovett (appointed 25 February 2010, resigned 7 March 2011)
L Barlow (resigned 31 January 2010)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responstble for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs) Under company law the drrectors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of
the Company for that pennod In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accountuing policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities (continued)
& state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financial statements, and
s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s 1nappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position of the Company
and enabie them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other uregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website Legislation in the Umited Kingdom goverming the preparation and
disserination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made quahfying third party indemmty provisions for the benefit of its directors which remain
1n force at the date of this report  Directors serving as directors of the Company’s ulumate parent throughout
2010, Cattles, are also indemmfied by the provisions made by Cattles

Employment policy

The Company gives sympathetic consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons wherever
practicable Successful applicants and employees who become disabled are given appropnate assistance and
traiming and have the same career and promotion prospects as other employees

Employee mvolvement

The directors believe 1n encouraging the interest and involvement of employees by making them more aware of
performance at both local and Group level Many employees are able to earn bonus payments based on cash
collections and the:r individual performance

Supplier payment policy and practice

Tt 15 the Company’s policy that paymenits to suppliers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions
agreed between the Company and 1ts supphers when a binding purchase contract 1s entered into, provided that all
trading terms and conditions have been comphied with At the year end, the Company had an average of 10 days’
purchases (2009 8 days’ purchases) outstanding n trade creditors

Financial risk management
Information about the use of financial instruments by the Company 15 gaven in note 22 to the Financial Statements

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of thus Annual Report confirms that

e 5o far as the director 18 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 15
unaware, and

e the directors have 1aken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companzes
Act 2006

The Company has passed an elective resolution to dispense with the obhgation to reappoint Auditors annually

By order of the Board

R C W Todd

Secretary

31 May 2011

Registered number 133540
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Welcome Financial Services Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Welcome Financial Services Lumuted for the year ended 31
December 2010 which compnse the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the balance sheet, the
cash flow statement and the related notes | t0 25 The financial reporung framework that has been applied 1n
therr preparation 1s apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

Ths report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we nught state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for thus report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explamned more fully 1in the Directors’ Responsibihities Staternent set out on pages 11 and 12, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimon on the financial statements 1n accerdance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Audiung Pracuces Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/prnivate cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimon the financial statements

* give a true and farr view of the state of the company’s affawrs as at 31 December 2010 and of 1ts loss for
the year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and have
been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Comparnes Act 2006 requires us to

report 1o you if, 1n our opinion

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wvisited by us, or
the financial statements are not 1n agreemnent with the accountung records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the mnformation and explanations we require for our audit

/M,//%ma CAAKLA

Mark Cardiff
Semor Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London, United Kingdom

31 May 2011
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £000
Interest income 240,634 411,500
Fee and related income 11,998 69,954
Revenue 252,682 481,454
Interest expense 2 105,532 141,999
Loan loss charge 10 162,790 760,465
Staff costs 3 83,160 122,754
Other operating expenses 5 90,912 95,739
Loss before taxation (189,712) (639,503)
Taxation 7 558 1,018
Laoss for the year from continuning operations (189,154) (638,485)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations - (10,478)
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of (189,154) (648,963)
the Company

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2010

There were no 1items of other comprehensive income 1n either of the above years and therefore total

comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to the equity holders of the Company amounted to a loss of

£189,154,000 (2009 a loss of £648,963,000)




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2010

Share Retained Total

capital earnings equity

£2000 £7000 £2000
At | January 2009 100,005 (913,984) (813,979)
Comprehensive loss for the year - (648,963) {648,963)
At | January 2010 100,005 (1,562,947 (1,462,942}
Comprehensive loss for the year - (189,154) (189,154)
At 31 December 2010 100,005 (1,752,101) (1,652,006}
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £7000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 8 508 921
Property, plant and equipment 9 2,352 4,282
Loans and receivables 10 424,072 716,533
426,932 721,736
Current assets
Loans and receivables 10 310,403 489,253
Tax assets 11 - -
Trade and other recervables 12 3,918 3,851
Cash and cash equivalents 144,147 61,908
458,468 555,012
Total assets 885,400 1,276,748
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borrowings 13 2,377,486 2,545,181
Trade and other payables 14 18,045 26,194
Current tax liabilities - 1,170
Deferred income 9,777 12,416
Provisions 15 66,784 48,377
2,472,092 2,633,338
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 13 1,862 5,634
Preference shares 17 36,203 36,106
Deferred income 8,703 11,052
Provisions 15 18,636 53,560
65,404 106,352
Total habilities 2,537,496 2,739,690
Net habilities (1,652,096) (1,462,942)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capatal 17 100,005 100,005
Retained earmings (1,752,101) (1,562,947)
Total equity (1,652,096) (1,462,942)

Registered number 133540
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash inflow from operations 19 254,675 396,437
Tax repaid - 86,425
Net cash mnflow from operating activities 254,675 482,862
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (234) (756)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,165 700
Purchase of intangible assets - 4,018)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 931 (4,074)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of intra-group borrowings (167,266) (425,927)
Repayment of external borrowings (6,101) (2,523)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (173,367) (428,450)
i\:l: tlllll:ll::;sz li):r(;a;: nasnd cash equivalents from 82239 50.338
Net cash flows from discontinued operations - (1,080)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 82,239 49,258
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 61,908 12,650
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 144,147 61,908
For the purposes of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and cash equivalents 144,147 61,908
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies

General information

Welcome Financial Services Limited (the Company) 1s a company incorporated 1n the United Kingdom The
address of the registered office 1s given on page 2 The nature of the Company’s operations 1s set out in the
Dhrectors’ Report

Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed IFRS and IFRIC interpretations
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board effective for accounung periods commencing on or after
1 January 2010 These Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with the Compames Act
2006 as applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

Basis of preparation

The Financia! Statements are prepared under the listoncal cost convention except for the use of faar values as
required by certain accounting standards, and are presented in Pounds Sterhing, the Company’s functional and
presentational currency

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company to all penods presented
1n these financial statements

Going concern

On 2 March 2011 (Scheme Effective Date), Cattles announced that the scheme of arrangement to effect the
recommended proposal for the acquisition of Cattles by Bovess had become effective Cattles also announced
that the schemes of arrangement between each of Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks and certain of their
respective creditors had become effective

Following Scheme Effective Date, Cattles and a number of its subsidianes, mcluding the Company, now have to
operate under the terms of the schemes As part of the restructunng discussions, Catiles and 1ts subsidianes
agreed a medium-term financial plan with their key financial creditors The schemes include a number of
covenants, which are measured against this medium-term plan, some of which 1f breached would lead 10 Scheme
Reversion

At 31 December 2010, the Company owed an inter-company hability to Cattles of £2 4 bilhion (2009 £27
billion} However, at that date, Cattles was also party to the standstll contained within the SEA and Cattles had
agreed not to demand repayment of the inter-company hability while the SEA continued Further, as part of the
WFS Scheme, Cattles agreed to compromuse the inter-company Liability for £49 mllion

As part of the WFS Scheme, the Company has established a trust of £20 mullion for the purpose of meeung the
cash redress costs of all valid claims anticipated to be made 1n respect of PPI sold pnor to 14 January 2005 This
trust can be tncreased to £22 5 muihon with the approval of the Scheme Supervisor There 1s a covenant 1n the
WFS Scheme that the Company may not, without the prior consent of the Creditors Commuttee, pay any amount
1 respect of pre 14 January 2005 PPI habihttes 1n excess of £22 5 muilion, whach would be a Scheme Reversion
event

The WFS Scheme includes a covenant 1n respect of Shopacheck’s Earmings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amorusation (EBITDA) as a percentage of gross receivables  This will normally be tested on a quarterly
basis, based on a 12 month rolling penod for EBITDA However, the first testing penod as at 31 October 2011
will be for a shorter period and 1t 15 anticipated that given Shopacheck 15 a seasonal business 1t will not meet the
covenant for this initial penod Consequently, under the WFS Scheme, the Company will prepare a new cash
flow forecast and valuation for approval by the Scheme Supervisor and Creditors Commuttee Importantly, a
breach of the EBITDA to gross receivables covenant 1s not a Scheme Reversion event

The directors continue to beheve the Company will not cease trading 1n the foreseeable future, as Welcome
focuses on collecung out 1ts customers’ loans, with Shopacheck continuing to trade as normal

After making enquines regarding the circumstances outlined above, the directors have concluded that based on
its current medivm-term plan there 1s currently no reason why the Company will not meet the covenants that lead
to a Scheme Reversion contained 1n the schemes and the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company can continue to pay its operational debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
conuinue 1o adopt the going concern basis 1n prepanng the Financial Statements The Financial Statements do not
include the adjustments that would result 1f the Company were unable to continue as a going concern




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Accounting developments

Standards and interpretations n issue which have not been adopted early

The following relevant standards and 1nterpretations have been 1ssued but are not effective for the year ended
31 December 2010

e IFRIC 19 ‘Exungmishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments’ {(effective 1 July 2010) This
clanfies the accounung treatment when the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and result 1n
an entity 1ssuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to extingush all or part of the financial
liability,

¢ [FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effectuve 1 January 2013) (not yet adopted by the European Union)
The Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) aims to replace 1AS 39 *Financial Instruments
Recogmtion and Measurement’ in its entirety  The replacement standard (IFRS 9) 1s being 1ssued 1n
phases To date, the chapters dealing with recogmtion, classificaton, measurement and derecogmtion of
financial assets and habilities have been 1ssued These chapters are effective for annual peniods
beginming 1 January 2013 Further chapters dealing with impairment methodology and hedge
accounting are shll being developed, and

¢ Improvements to IFRS 1ssued May 2010 (some changes effective 1 July 2010, others effecuve 1 January
2011) The JASB has ssued ‘Improvements to IFRS 2010° (2010 Improvements) Most of these
amendments become effective 1n annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
The 2010 Improvements amend certain provisions of IFRS 3 (revised), clanfy presentation of the
reconciliation of each of the components of other comprehensive income and clanfy certain disclosure
requirements for financial instruments

In all instances, the Board 1s considering the impact that these standards may have on the Company’s 31
December 2011 financial statements

Revenue recognition
Revenue compnses the fair value recervable for the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, and 1s
recognised as follows

a) Interest income

Interest income 15 recogmsed 1n the Income Statement for all financial assets measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period The effecuve interest rate (EIR) 1s the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life, or contractual term if shorter, of
the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset  When calculating the EIR, the Company
estimates cash flows considenng all coniractual terms of the financial instruments, such as early settlement
options, but does not include an expectaton for future credit losses The calculation includes all fees charged to
customers, such as acceptance or sumular fees, and direct and incremental transaction costs, such as broker
comrussions and certain agents’ remuneration

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases and hure purchase contracts are recorded as receivables at the
amount of the Company’s net investment in the lease or contract Finance income 15 allocated to accounting
penods so as to reflect a constant penodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment (before tax)
outstanding 1n respect of the lease or contract

b) Fee and related income

The Company offered payment protection and other surance products, such as health, Iife and mechamcal
breakdown insurance, to its customers for which a commssion was received from third party fronting insurers
Income from commussion and profit share arrangements, in respect of payment prolection insurance, 15
recogmsed on an effective interest method over the term of the pohcy The effective interest method reflects the
provision of service under the policy, as the Company bears the insurance risk  Commussion received for
brokenng the sale of other insurance products, for which the Company does not bear any underlying insurance
nisk, 15 recognised and credited to the Income Statement when the brokerage service has been provided

Interest expense
Interest expense pnmanly compnses the interest expense ansmng on the Company’s borrowings from Cattles
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are measured smtially at fair value plus transactions costs, except for those financial assets,
which are carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured rmtially at fair value Management
deternunes the classification of the Company’s financial assets at imtial recognition into one of the following
categores, loans and receivables, held-to-matunty financial assets, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and re-evaluaies thus designauon at each reporting date to the
extent allowed

Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market They anse when the Company provides money directly to a customer with no intention of
trading the receivable This classification includes advances made to customers under hire purchase agreements
and purchased debt

Loans and receivables are recogmsed when cash 1s advanced to borrowers, or at the date of acquisition 1n respect
of purchased debt These assets are imtially recogmsed at fair value plus direct and incremental transacton
costs Loans and recervables are subsequently carnied at amortised cost using the effective interest method

The Company has not held any held-to-matunty financial assets, available-for-sale financial assets or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at any point during the year

Financial assets are derecogmsed when the nghts to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
where the Company has transferred substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership, or where there has been
a substantial modification of terms

Impairment of loans and receivables

In respect of loans and receivables, including receivables under hire purchase contracts, the Company assesses
on an ongoing basis whether there 1s objective evidence that a loan asset or a group of loan assets 1s impaired
A loan asset or a group of loan assets 1s impaired and 1mpairment losses are incurred only 1f there 15 objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the imitial recogmtion of the asset
(a loss event) and the loss event will have an impact on the estumated future cash flows of the loan asset or
group of loan assets and can be reliably estimated

For the purposes of evaluating the degree of impairment, loan assets are grouped on the basis of stmular credit
nsk charactenstics Those charactenstics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
assets being evaluated Future cash flows for a group of loan assets are estirnated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets and historical loss experience for assets with credit nisk characterisucs simlar to those 1n
the Company Hastorical loss expenence 15 adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects
of current conditions that did not affect the penod on which the histonical loss expenence 1s based and to remove
the effects of conditions 1n the historical period that do not exist currently

In 2008, Welcome carmned an incurred but not reported (IBNR) provision for debt less than 120 days in arrears In
2009 and 2010, with lending acuvity significantly reduced, and 1in December 2009 stopped, Welcome has been
better able to 1dentify loss events at an earher stage, and as such 1s now calculating a loan provision from 1 day
overdue As such, IBNR now only refers to debt that 15 up-to-date

In Welcome, objective evidence of impairment occurs after a customer musses a full or a part contractual
payment Impairment 1s increased by reference to the level of contractual arrears on a customer account as
follows

a) 120 days contractual arrears

At 120 days contractual arrears the relanonship with the customer 1s judged to have broken down and loans are
subject to an 1impairment charge on the basis of expected future cash flows All expected credat losses are
deemed to be fully incurred at this pownt

b) Less than 120 days contractual arrears

Where accounts less than 120 days 1n arrears have mussed one contractual payment they are subject to an
impairment charge calculated on the basis of expected future cash flows excluding future credit losses The
credit losses are deemed to be partially mcurred at this point and are calculated based on the probability of a
customer’s propensity to default
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

¢) Incurred but not reported (IBNR)

A provision 15 also made against accounts which are prepaid and up-to-date based on credst loss events that have
occurred but which are not yet reported Thus 1s calculated based on the probability of defanlt and the loss given
default Future credit losses are not recogmsed

In Shopacheck, accounts are reviewed based upon recent cash collection performance over a 13-week perod
Where the payment performance at each reporung date 1s fewer than 12 payments over the preceding 13 weeks,
an impairment provision 1s made where future expected cash flows are lower than the carrying value of the lean

If there 1s objectaive evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of esimated future cash flows, excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred, discounted at the loan asset’s onginal EIR  The carrying
amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of a loan loss proviston The amount of the loss 1s recogmised 1n
the Income Statement as a loan loss charge

Loans and receivables (and the related loan loss provision) are normally writien off when there 1s no realisuc
prospect of recovery of these amounts

Renegotiated loans

Loans whose terms are contractually renegotiated and subject to a substantial modification 1n terms, are no
longer regarded as past due or impaired and are disclosed as new loans The renegotiated loan 1s considered to
be past due only 1f further performance 1ssues arise, based on the new contractual terms For renegotiated loans,
an mitial write down, to reflect incurred credit losses as a resuit of the renegotiation, 1s calculated by comparing
the revised future contractual cash flows ansing from the renegotiated loan, discounted at the onginal EIR, with
the carrying value of the loan Any difference 1s charged as a loan loss provision to the iIncome statement

On 1mitial recogmtion, renegotated loans are recogmsed at their fair value

Collateral

Loans classified as secured Yoans relate to those loans on which a charge 1s apphed to customers’ property
These charges typically comprise 2™, 3" or lesser charges on the customers’ residential property and, as such,
collateral does not represent a signmificant proportion of the loans’ fair value Accordingly, Welcome does not
maintain records of customers’ property values and does not calculate a fair value of this collateral 1n respect of
1ts secured loans, as 1t 1s deemed immatenal The collateral relating to hire purchase loans relate to second hand
motor cars Given the number of vanables such as age, state and re-sale value of the vehicle, and relatively
immatenal amounts recovered from hire purchase collateral, Welcome does not calculate the value of hire
purchase collateral

Staff costs

a) Short-term benefits

Wages, salanes, commussions, bonuses, social secunty contributions, paid annual leave and non-monetary
benefits, including the cost of providing company cars and death-1n-service premiums, are accrued 1n the penod
1n which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company

b) Pension obligations

Throughout 2010, the Company was a member of the Cattles group, which operated both a defined benefit
penston plan (which closed to future service accrual in May 2010) and a number of defined contnbuuon
pension plans The Company provides no other post-retirement benefits to its employees, including directors

There 15 no contractual agreement or stated policy 1n place for charging the net expense of the defined benefit
plan as a whole to the participaing Group compames Consequently, the net defined benefit expense and the
retirement benefit obligation are recogmsed 1n full by the plan’s sponsorning employer, Cattles, the Company’s
ulumate parent duning 2010 The Company, and other part:cipating members, recogmse a pension expense equal
to theur proportuen of contributions payable for the penod Subsequent to the Group’s restructuring becoming
effective on 2 March 2011, the Company, and other Group members, are no longer participating employers 1n the
defined benefit plan

For defined contnbutien pension plans, these are prnivately admmstered and the Company pays contributions on
a contractual basis The contnbutions are recognised as a staff cost as they fall due
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

<) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s termunated before the normal reurement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy 1n exchange for these benefits The Company recogmses termination
benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably commutted to either the termenation of employment or a voluntary redundancy
offer

d) Share-based payments

The Company 1s a member of Cattles group, which, throughout 2010, operated a number of equity-settled share-
based payment plans In respect of share awards granted after 7 November 2002 (and not vested by 1 January
2005), 1n accordance with [FRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’, an expense 1s recogmsed in respect of the fair value of
employee services received in exchange for the grant of shares or share options A corresponding amount 15
recorded as an increase 1n equity within retained earnings  The expense 1s spread over any relevant vesting
penod and 1s calculated by reference to the fair value of the shares or share options granted, excluding the effect
of any non-market vesting conditions

When the Company’s ulumate parent throughout 2010, Cattles, 1n whose shares the share-based payment awards
were made, grants new share options as consideration for the cancellation or settlement of an old grant, these are
identified as replacements for the cancelled share opuons and are accounted for as a modification 1n accordance
with IFRS 2 Therefore, the original fair value 1n relation to the cancelled share options continues to be recognised
as an expense over the onginal vesting penod, together with an expense for the incremental fair value being
recogmsed over the vesung period of the replacement share options The incremental fair value 1s calculated as the
difference between the fair value of the replacement share options and the net fair value of the cancelled share
options at the date the replacement share options were granted

Cattles does not make a recharge to the Company for the cost of the awards granted toits employees

In amving at fair values, the Black-Scholes pnicing model 1s used and vanous assumptions are made, for
example, on expected forfeiture rates, dividend yrelds, share price volatihty and nisk free rates  The esumate for
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable 1s revised at each reporung date  Any rmpact
from the revision of onginal estimates 1s recogmsed 1n the Income Statement over the remaining vestung period

As a consequence of the Group’s restructunng becoming effective on 2 March 2011, all of the Group's share-
based payment plans have been termnated

Tax
The charge or credit for current tax 15 based on the taxable profit or loss for the year as adjusted for items which
are non-assessable or disallowed, calculated using rates of tax applicable at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the 1ax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 1n the financial statements Deferred tax 1s recogmsed
in the Income Statement, except to the extent that it relates to 1items recogmsed directly 1in other comprehensive
ncome or equity, 1n which case 1t 1s recogrused 1n other comprehensive income or equity However, deferred tax
15 not provided on the 1itial recogmnion of goodwill, nor on the timtial recogmition of an asset or Liability unless
the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit Deferred tax 15 deterrmned
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax hability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utlised
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation 15 a component of the Company, which has either been disposed of, or 1s classified as
held for sale at the reporiing date, and

* represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

* 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major hne of business or geographical area
of operations, or

* 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

The profit or loss from discontinued operations, mncluding prior year components of profit or loss, 1s presented as
a single amount 1n the Income Statement

The disclosures for discontinued operations 1n the prior year relate to all operations that have been discontinued
by the reporting date for the latest penod presented

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held with
banks with maturity dates of less than three months, and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings 1n the Balance Sheet

Intangible assets — computer software

Acquired software licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss Cost
represents expenditure that 15 directly attnibutable to the purchase of the licence The licences are amortised over
their useful lives (3 to 7 years) on a straight line basis  The amortisation charge 15 recogmsed within other
operating expenses

Costs directly attributable to the creation of identifiable software, which meet the development asset recogmtion
criteria as laid out 1n TAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’, are recogmsed as nternally generated intangible assets Dhrect
costs include the employment costs of internal software developers, consultancy costs and borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalised until such ume as the internally generated software 15 substantially ready for its
intended use

Computer software development costs recognsed as assets are amortised over therr esumated useful hives
(5-7 years) on a straight line basis The residual values and useful lives of capitalised computer software are
reviewed, and adjusted :f appropnate, at each reporung date

All other software development costs, which did not meet the asset recogmtion critena of IAS 38, and
maintenance costs are recognised as an expense as tncurred

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation  Cost represents expenditure that 1s
directly attnbutable to the purchase of the asset Certain land and buildings are held at previous revalued
amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation, which were taken as their deemed cost at the date of
transition to IFRS (1 January 2004} 1in accordance with the exemption under IFRS 1 ‘First-adoption of
International Financial Repeorting Standards’

Subsequent costs are included 1n the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when 1t 15 probable that future economuc benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably

Land 15 not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the
costs less their residual values over their esiimated useful hves, as follows

Freehold buildings 2%pa

Leasehold buildings 2% w20%pa

Fixtures and office equipment 10% t0 20% p a

Computer hardware Shorter of 20% to 334% p a or the [ease term
Motor vehicles Shorter of 20% p a or the lease term

The assets” residual values and useful hives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each reporting date
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Leasing — as lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company has substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases  Asscts held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts are
capitahised on inception of the agreement at an amount equal to their fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the mimmum lease payments The interest element of the lease cost 1s charged to the Income Statement, within
other operating expenses, over the lease period so as to produce a constant peniodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the hability for each period

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases or hire purchase contracts are depreciated over the
shorter of the penod of the agreement and the estimated useful hives of the assets

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
Income Statement, withun other operating expenses or staff costs (in the case of company cars), on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease

The obligations outstanding under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are included within other habilities
n the Balance Sheet

Leasing — as lessor

Where advances were made to customers under hire purchase agreements whereby the Company conveyed the
night to use assets over a penied of tame 1n exchange for payment, the present value of the lease payment 1s
recogmsed 1n loans and receivables Income 1s recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment
method 1n 1nterest income

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables, which do not include loans and receivables to customers of the Company, are
recogmised ininally at fair value and, subsequently, at amortised cost less provision for impairment

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the
Company wiil not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables The
amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of esumated
future cash flows, discounted at the oniginal EIR The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recogmised in the Income Statement

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets, other than loans and receivables and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determune whether there 1s any indication of impairment  If any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated

The recoverable amount of the Company’s receivables 1s calculated as the present value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the ttme value of money
and the risks specific 1o the asset Receivables wath a short duration are not discounted Further details on the
impairment pohicy 1n relation to the Company’s loan portfohio are set out in the accounting policy Impairment of
loans and receivables

The recoverable amount of other assets 1s the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In
assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money and the nsks specific to the
asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 15 determuned
for the Cash Generaung Umit (CGU) to which the asset belongs An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or 1ts CGU exceeds 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recogrused n the
Income Statement

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 1if there has been a change 1n the estimates used to determne

the recoverable amount, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determuned, net of amortisation or deprectation, 1f no impairment loss had been recogmsed in prior years
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Preference shares
The Company’s preference shares are recogmsed as financial habilites The dividends attached to these shares
are non-discretionary and cumulative, and, therefore, give rise to a contractual obligation on the Company

Preference shares are initially recogmsed at fair value, the value of the censideration received less directly
attnbutable transaction costs  After ininal recogmtion, preference shares are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method The effective interest method takes into account the estmated future dividend
payments over the expected life of the shares

Preference dividends are recogmsed as an interest expense i the penod 1in which the dividend habalrty falls due

Prowvisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present legal or constructive obhigation as a result of past
events, 1t 1s more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhgation, and the
amount has been rehably measured

Further details of provisions relating to PPI are set cut i note 1

Trade payables
Trade payables are recogmsed mutially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective 1nterest method

Equity instruments

An equity 1instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual 1nterest 1n the assets of the Company after deducting
all of 1ts habihties Equty mstruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
transactions costs

Financial habilities

Other financial hiabilities, including borrowings, are imtially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the
amorused cost of a financial hability and allocating 1nterest expense over the relevant pennod The effective interest
rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts esumated future cash payments through the effective hife of the financial
lLiabihity, or, where appropnate, a shorter penoed
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Welcome Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

1  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in confornuty with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the apphcation of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
mcome and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical expenience and vanous
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgemeats about the carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The esumates and underlying assumptons are reviewed on an ongoing basis  Revisions 10 accounting esumates
are recognised 1n the peniod 1n which the estmate 15 revised 1f the revision affects only that penod, or 1n the
penod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future penods

The following are the crinical sources of estimation and judgement that the directors have made in the process of
applymng the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 1n
the financial statements

Key source of judgement

Loan loss provisioning

Impairment losses are calculated 1n circumstances where a loss event, an imparrment tnigger, 15 deemed to have
occurred, as described 1n the statement of accounting policies  The determunation of impairment triggers has
been reviewed and remains a key area of management judgement

Key estimates

Loan loss provisioning

In assessing future cash flows for the purposes of assessing 1impairment, management uses histonic data from
portfolios of similar loans The assessment of the applicable range of data to include in the impairment
calculation 1s a key esimate

The degree to which the calculated imparrment 15 deemed to be incurred for each delinquency band 1s also a
key estimate

. Incurred losses

Where there 1s objective evidence of impairment, losses should be calculated on the basis of the present value of
future expected cash flows, not inciuding the effects of future credit losses The degree to which a loss 15 incurred 15
a matter of judgement

Impairment losses are only considered to be fully incurred when an account has reached the 120 day arrears band
For accounts which are past due in the arrears bands 1-29 days, 30-59 days, 60-89 days and 90-119 days, a
proportion of the full expected loss 1s recognised, reflecting only those credit loss events incurred within those
respective bands

If the percentages applied are removed from the 1-29 days, 30-59 days, 60-89 days and 90-119% days bands and
the full expected loss 1s recogmsed, then based on management’s assumptions, the provision would increase by
£41 9 mlhion (2009 £95 5 mulhion) If the losses were only deemed incurred at the 120 day arrears band, then

the provision would reduce by £68 5 milhion (2009 £161 0 nulhion)

For accounts which are up-to-date or prepaid, an IBNR provision 1s calculated based on management’s estimates
of the propensity of these accounts to roll through to the 120 days arrears band, where credit losses are deemed to
be fully incurred

. Historical data
The loan book 1n Welcome 1s collectively evaluated for impairment Impairment 1s assessed on the basis of
future cash flows based on the histoncal performance of assets with stmular nsk charactenstics

Historical loan performance data has been used which tracks the subsequent cash performance, based on
representative hustoric data  The histoncal data 1s reviewed for apphcability to the current peniod

A 10% increase or decrease 1n actual cash collected against that predicted by historical data would resuttina
change 1n loan loss provision of £16 8 milhon (2009 £27 9 million)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
(continued)

1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value

Fair value of loans and receivables has been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows from the loans
and receivables at the Cattles group’s cost of capital plus the costs of collection at the reporting date  Both the
future cash flows and the market rate of interest contain sigmificant estimates A five percentage point increase 1n
the discount factor would reduce the fair value by £42 3 mullion (2009 £61 5 mullion)

Provisions

The Company has recogmsed provisions 1n relation to potential future costs ansing as a result of past sales of
PPI, further details of which are set out in note 15 The calculauon of the provisions contains significant
judgement and estimates and was deternuned by reference to an informed estimate made by the Company as to
the likely amount that would be needed to meet such claims That esumate took account of the number of PPE
pohicies sold by the Company, claims received to date, an estimate of the number of claims which may be made
in the future and, if made, be valid, and the average cost of redress A +/- 5% change 1n the claims response rate
would, 1f all these claims were valhd and paid, change the required provision by £7 8 nuilion A change 1n the
average cost of redress of +/- 10% would change the required provision by £5 4 mmlhon
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

(continued)

2 Interest expense

2010 2009

£000 £000

Interest expense on intra-group borrowings 105,516 142,013
Bank interest (160) (185)
Other interest 79 74
Interest on preference shares 97 97
105,532 141,999

3  Staff costs

2010 2009

£000 £000

Wages and salanes 68,553 100,555
Social secunty costs 6,858 10,459
Pension costs - defined contnbution pension schemes (note 20) 980 972
Other employee benefits 6,769 10,768
Total staff costs 83,160 122,754

Staff costs include a cost for employee termunation benefits of £6 4 mlhion (2009 £1 7 million) No

terrmnation benefits have been paid to directors of the Company Other employee benefits pnncipally

comprise the cost of providing company cars, health insurance and hife assurance cover

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company from continuing operations {including

directors) dunng the year was as follows

2010 2009

Number Number

Welcome 1,588 3,078
Shopacheck 557 622
2,145 3,700
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

(continued)

4 Directors’ emoluments

2010 2009
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 828 643
Contnibutions to defined contribution pension schemes 6 30
834 673

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing under pension schemes s
Number Number
Under defined benefit scheme - -
Under defined contnbutron scheme - 1
- 1

The emoluments of the highest paid director were

£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 497 486
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme - -
497 486

FR Dee, M A Young, ] R Drummond Smuth and P J Felton-Smuth (2009 D J Postings, M W G Collins, J J Corr,
1S Cummine, N N Broadhurst, D A Haxby, A J McWalter, F R Dee, M A Young and ] R Prummond Smith)

recerved no emoluments 1n respect of their services to the Company durning the year

The services of L Barlow and D Lovett were provided to the Company by AlixPartners Limuted and are included
above The amounts paid to this supplier, which 1ncludes the costs of providing L Barlow and D Lovett plus

other services in the year, are set out 1n note 24 as a related party supplier

Key management compensation, paid by the Company, amounted to £0 7 mullion (2009 £0 3 mulhion) Key

managers, paid by the Company’s ulumate parent company throughout 2010, are disclosed 1n note 24
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
(continued)

5  Other operating expenses

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Adminstrative expenses 20,093 32,041
Occupancy costs 10,789 13,598
Agents’ commussion 10,419 10,133
Advertising costs 1,133 1,156
Collection costs 6,625 12,720
Motor and travel expenses 750 1,378
Impairment of plant, property and equipment 502 9,726
Depreciation and amortisation costs 1,152 5,516
Provisions costs 26,589 5,826
Other 12,860 3,645
90,912 95,739
Other includes hire purchase interest expense of £0 5 million (2009 £1 3 mullien)
6  Auditor’s remuneration
The analys:s of Auditor’s remuneration 1s as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
Audit Services
Grant Thomton UK LLP 266 600

No remuneration paid to Grant Thornton UK LLP in the year related to non-audit services (2009 £mil)
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(continued)

7 Taxation

2010 2009
Analysis of credit in the year: £2000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 28% (2009 28%) 322 (968)
Adjustments 1n respect of previous years (380) (50
Total tax credit in the Income Statement (558) (1,018)

The rate of tax for the year 15 28% (2009 28%) The tax credit for the year s lower (2009 lower) than the tax
credit on ordinary activities at the standard rate for the reasons set out 1n the following reconcihation

2010 2009

£000 £000
Loss from continuing operations before taxation (189,712) (639,503)
Tax on loss on ordinary acuvities at 28% (2009 28%) (53,119) (179,061)
Factors affecting the credat for the year
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 150 931
Income not taxable for tax purposes - (163)
Effect of group rehef surrendered for less than the rate of corporabon tax 1,292 -
Movement 1n unprovided deferred tax 51,999 177,207
Adjustments to tax credit in respect of previous years (830) (50)
Effect of gains - 118
Total tax credit for the year (558) (1,018)
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8 Intangible assets

Brand name

and Internally
trademarks Acquired generated

Computer software licence licences software Total

£'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2009 11,640 28,255 62,466 102,361
Additions - 4,028 - 4,028
Wntten off - (2,619) - (2,619)
At 1 January 2010 11,640 29,664 62,466 103,770
Wntien off - 3 - (5)
At 31 December 2010 11,640 29,659 62,466 103,765
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2009 11,640 27,119 62,466 101,225
Charge for the year - 3,598 - 3,598
Wnitten off - (1,974) - (1,974)
At 1 January 2010 11,640 28,743 62,466 102,849
Charge for the year - 408 - 408
At 31 December 2010 11,640 29,151 62,466 103,257
Net hook amount
At 31 December 2010 - 508 - 508
At 31 December 2009 - 921 - 921
At 1 January 2009 - 1,136 - 1,136

The internally generated computer software principally relates to the cost of developing Welcome’s customer
relationship management and back-office lending systems Following an impairment review as at 31 December
2008 the carrying value of these assets was written down to £ml

The amortisation charge for the year includes £ml (2009 £11,000) relating to discontinued operations

The net present value of the Company’s acquired assets comprises their value 1n use, calculated as their histonc
cost less amortisation and impairment as appropnate
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9  Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures

land and land and and Motor

buildings buildings equipment vehicles Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2009 2,476 10,628 47,462 3,989 64,555
Additions - 134 2,639 62 2,835
Disposals (200) (1,365) (1,506) (1,559) (4,630)
At 1 January 2010 2,276 9,397 48,595 2,492 62,760
Additions - - 234 - 234
Disposals (560) (526) (73) (1,412) 2.57D)
At 31 December 2010 1,716 8,871 48,756 1,080 60,423
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2009 310 7,958 39,831 1,664 49,763
Charge for the year 35 778 742 861 2,416
Impairment - 1,450 8,276 - 9,726
Disposals - (1,021) (1,257) (1,149) (3,427
At 1 January 2010 345 9,165 47,592 1,376 58,478
Charge for the year 41 56 262 385 744
Impairment - 2 500 - 502
Disposals (102) (444) (54) (1,053) (1,653)
At 31 December 2010 284 8,779 48,300 708 58,071
Net book amount
At 31 December 2010 1,432 92 456 372 2,352
At 31 December 2009 1,931 232 1,003 1,116 4,282
At 1 January 2009 2,166 2,670 7,631 2,325 14,792

The net book value of motor vehicles includes an amount of £0 4 nulhon (2009 £1 1 mullion) in respect of
assets held by the Company under finance leases and hire purchase contracts Included within the depreciation
charge 15 £0 4 million (2009 £9 5 mullion) 1n respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

The depreciation charge for the year includes £ml (2009 £0 5 nullion) relatung to discontinued operations

Depreciation has been charged to the Company’s Income Statement through other operating expenses
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10 Loans and receivables

2010 2009
£7000 £000
Loans and receivables 733,187 1,205,786
Intra-group receivables 1,288 -
734,475 1,205,786

Compnising
Non-current assets 424,072 716,533
Current assets 310,403 489,253
734,475 1,205,786

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1n relation to loans and receivables 1s the nisk that financial loss anses from the failure of a customer
to meet 1ts obligations under a loan agreement A description of the Company’s objectives, policies and
procedures for managing credit nsk are set out in note 22, Financial nsk management

Maximum exposure to credit sk
The maximum exposure to credit nsk of the Company’s loans and receivables 15 set out 1n the table below

2010 2009

£000 £000

Welcome 679,302 1,141,497
Shopacheck 53,885 64,289
733,187 1,205,786

The estumated fair value of loans and recervables at 31 December 2010 15 £538 3 mullion (2009 £894 9 nmllion)
Faur value has been calculated by discounting future expected cash flows from the loans and receivables at 8 0%
per annum (2009 8 4%), being the Cattles group’s cost of capital plus the costs of collection effective at the
reporting date  Management regards this rate to be the most appropnate current market rate to use for this type of
asset, given the difficulty in obtaining recent market data The discount rate used 1s based on the hirmted market
data that extsts  If the fair value was calculated by discounung the expected future cash flows from the loans and
receivables at the effective interest rate for each loan, the estimated fair value would be £413 3 mlhon (2009
£648 4 mullicn)

The estimated fair value of the receivables 1s less than the carrying value as the fair value calculation takes
account of future expected credit losses in addition to incurred losses

Credit quality
A summary of the arrears status of loans and receivables by class 15 shown below as at 31 December 2010 and 2009

2010 Welcome Shopacheck Total

£000 £000 £7000
Neither past due nor impaired 511,285 35,044 546,329
Past due and impaired 1,704,785 103,231 1,808,016
Outstanding customer balance 2,216,070 138,275 2,354,345
Unamortised fees and costs and accrued interest (34,976) (24,019) (58,995)
Gross loans and receivables 2,181,094 114,256 2,295,350
Loan loss provision (1,501,792) (60,371) (1,562,163)
Total loans and receivables 679,302 53,885 733,187
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10 L.oans and receivables {continued)

Credit quality (contmued)
Based upon historical informaton on customer default rates, management considers the credit quality of loans and
receirvables that are neither past due nor impaired to be satisfactory

2009 Welcome Shopacheck Total
£000 £000 £000
Neither past due nor impaired 814,784 29,903 844,687
Past due and impaired 2,184,630 107,489 2,292,119
Quistanding customer balance 2,999414 137,392 3,136,806
Unamorused fees and costs and accrued interest {86,783) (22,612) (109,395)
Gross loans and receivables 2,912,631 114,780 3,027,411
Loan loss provision (1,771,134) (50,491) (1,821,625
Total loans and receivables 1,141,497 64,289 1,205,786

Past due and impaired balances relate to loans which are contractually overdue However, Welcome’s contractually
overdue loans are not 1impaired to their full expected loss unless the customer 1s 120 days n contractual arrears

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are reflective of those loans typically
made within the non-standard or sub-prime market, which 1s Weicome and Shopacheck's key focus

Welcome

Loans and receivables — past due and impaired 2010 2009
£°000 £000

Past due up to 29 days 95,964 188,078
Past due 30-59 days 71,102 145,615
Past due 60-89 days 58,039 120,719
Past due 90-119 days 48,895 106,359
Past due 120 days or more 1,430,785 1,623,859
1,704,785 2,184,630

The above analysis includes loans and recervables that would have been past due or impaired had their terms not
been renegonated These loans totalled £155 1 mullion and £5 8 milhion (2009 £242 2 million and £12 1 mullion) 1n
respect of Welcome and Shopacheck respectively

Shopacheck receavables of £103 2 mullion (2009 £107 5 mullion) whach are classified as past due and impaired
have not been analysed into past due bandings since the collection performance of this type of loan 1s not
managed with reference to the extent of any contractual arrears ansing duning the entire period of the loan since
its inception Instead, performance 1s managed, and the need for any loan loss provision 1s considered, with
reference to the value of contractual payments received i only the preceding 13-week period This approach
prohubits any meamngful disclosure of the ageing of the debt by reference to its contractual past due status In
addition, the directors consider that this disclosure of the Shopacheck receivables 1s not matenal in the context of
the Company’s total gross loans and receivables of £2 3 bilhion (2009 £3 0 billion)

Collateral

The Company holds collateral in relation to certain loans and receivables, further details of which are provided
below
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10 Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and receivables — security type, gross of loan loss charges

2010 Welcome Shopacheck Total
£000 £°000 £000
Secured 1,149,708 - 1,149,708
Unsecured 673,100 138,275 811,375
Hire purchase 393,262 - 393,262
2,216,070 138,275 2,354,345

2009
Secured 1,268,518 - 1,268,518
Unsecured 1,045,064 137,392 1,182,456
Hire purchase 685,832 - 685,832
2999414 137,392 3,136,806

Secured loans

Secured loans have 2™, 3 or lower charges on the customers’ property However, secured loans are not
underwntten based on available property equity, but on the customer’s ab:lity to afford the loan repayments, with
the emphasis placed on assessing and verifying the customer’s incormungs and outgoings

Hire purchase

Hire purchase loans are advanced to customers for the purchase of used motor vehicles Welcome retains
secunty over the vehicle underlying the hure purchase agreement The terms of the hure purchase contract allow
the customer to voluntanly terminate and allow the Company to repossess the vehicle, both subject to meetung
certain critena

A custormer may voluntanly terminate the hire purchase contract provided they have paid at least 50% of the
contract and have not recerved a notice of default In this instance, the vehicle 15 returned to the Company and
disposed of, with the proceeds offset against the customer’s outstanding balance Any remaining balance 1s
writien off

Legally, the Company may repossess a vehicle financed on a hire purchase contract, provided the customer has
paid less than one third of the contract and a notice of default has been 1ssued The Company endeavours to
negotiate arrangements with the customer to avoid the need for repossession  Vehucles that are repossessed are
promptly disposed of at auction and the proceeds offset against the customer’s outstanding balance The
customer 1s liable for any remaiung balance

Maturity profile of hire purchase receivables
The Company’s gross investment 1n hire purchase recervables 15 analysed in the table below

Gross Gross
Present carrying Present carrying
value value value value
2010 2010 2009 2009
£000 £'000 £000 £7000
Within one year 108,008 123,693 350,437 404,342
One to five years 150,707 172,593 184,113 235,859
Over five years 84,679 96,976 37,796 45,631
343,394 393,262 572,346 685,832
Unearned future finance income - (49,868) - (113,486)
Loan loss provision {260,761) (260,761) (320,068) (320,068)
Present value of future lease payments 82,633 82,633 252,278 252,278
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10 Loans and receivables (continued)

Coliateral

The collateral relating to secured loans detailed above comprises 2™, 3" or lesser charges on the borrowers’
property, and hire purchase loans mainly compnising motor vehicles Welcome does not consider this collateral to
have a matenal value and, accordingly, does not maintain records of the customers’ property values and as such 1t
1s impracticable to calculate a fair value of thus collateral or value the collateral recovered 1n respect of 1ts secured
loans Dunng the year no collateral on secured loans was recovered (2009 £ml) Simlarly, the value of hure
purchase collateral 1s deemed 1mmatenal and, accordingly, no fair value 1s disclosed During 2010, £15 1 mulhon

(2009 £22 9 mullion) of lure purchase collateral was recovered

Loan loss provision

The following tables provide an analysis of the movement 1n the Company’s loan loss provision duning 2010

and 2009
2010 Welcome Shopacheck Total
£000 £7000 £7000

At | Januvary 2010 1,771,134 50,491 1,821,625
Uulised (403,730) (27,875) (431,605)
Recovenes of amounts previously written off 8.390 963 9,353
Charged to the Income Statement

Additional provisions created 134,388 37,755 172,143

Recovenes of amounts previously wntten off (8,390) (963) (9,353
Total loan loss charge 125,998 36,792 162,790
Loan loss prowision at 31 December 2010 1,501,792 60,371 1,562,163
2009 Welcome Shopacheck Total

£000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2009 1,224,139 54,485 1,278,624
Utilised (175,713) (43,404) (219.117)
Recovenes of amounts previously written off 877 776 1,653
Charged to the Income Statement

Addiuonal provisions created 722,708 39,410 762,118

Recoveres of amounts previously written off 877 (776) (1,653)
Total loan loss charge 721,831 38,634 760,465
Loan loss provision at 31 December 2009 1,771,134 50,491 1,821,625
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11 Tax assets

Current tax assets
Current tax assets amounted to £ml (2009 £mil)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 27%
(2009 28%)

The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset on losses of £1,385 7 milhion (2009 £1,300 5 mithon) 1n
the Financial Statements, as 1t 15 not considered probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which this asset can be utihised

In addinon, no deferred tax asset has been recogmsed on accelerated capital allowances or other irung

differences, as 1t 15 not considered probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
assets will reverse

12  Trade and other receivables

2010 2009
£2000 £000

Current
Trade receivables 295 608
Other receivables 554 609
Prepayments and accrued income 3,069 2,634
3,918 3,851

Analysis of the arrears status of the Company's trade receivables, prepayments and accrued income has not been

presented as the amounts concerned are not matenal The Company’s other recervables are considered neither
past due nor impaired

Trade and other recervables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment, none of which were found to be
mmpaired The Company's other receivables at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are considered neither past due
nor 1mpaired

The Company has no renegotiated trade and other receivables and does not hold any collateral in respect of its
trade and other receivables
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13 Borrowings

2010 2009
£000 £000
Current
External borrowings 732 965
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 3,426 5,522
Intra-group borrowings 2,373,328 2,538,694
2,377,486 2,545,181
Non-current
External borrowings 40 621
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 1,822 5,013
1,862 5,634
Total borrowings 2,379,348 2,550,815
External borrowings relate to a fixed rate 6 39% loan, which 1s repayable 1n quarterly instalments by
September 2011
At 31 December 2010, intra-group borrowings are repayable on demand, however they were subject to the
agreements contained 1in the SEA and were not subject to repayment whilst the SEA continued
14  Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 3,042 3,595
Other taxes and social security 3,614 4,798
Other payables 742 2,565
Accruals 10,647 15,236
18,045 26,194

All trade payables have a matunity of within one month
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15 Provisions

2010 2009
£7000 £'000
Current

Property provisions 1,311 377
Payment Protecuon Insurance provisions 65,473 47,800
66,784 48,377

Non-current
Property provisions 3,609 5,860
Payment Protecuon Insurance provisions 15,027 47,700
18,636 53,560
Total provisions 85,420 101,937

Property provisions relate to the estimated future cost of rectifying dilapidations for the leasehold properues
occupied by the Company and the future expected lease rent costs of properties which are not in use by the
Company The provision 1s expected to be utilised within three years from the balance sheet date The
movement 1n the provision 1s as follows

2010 2009

£000 £000

At 1 January 6,437 2,211
Utilised (3,206) (929)

Provisions made 1,689 5,155

At 31 December 4.92( 6,437

PPI provisions relate to the esimaton of the Company’s potential future costs ansing as a result of past sales of
PPI (see below for further details) The movement 1n the provision 1s as follows

2010 2009

£000 £000
At 1 January 95,500 93,900
Utihised (36,300) (4,457)
Provisions made 24,900 6,057
Movement i discounting (3,600) -
At 31 December 80,500 95,500

In previous years, Welcome sold PPI to a substantial number of its customers Like cther compames that sold
PPI, Welcome has received a significant number of complaints relating to the sale of PP1, and has, prior to the
restructuning, dealt wath these complaints 1n the ordinary course of 1ts business
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As part of the restructunng, the Company has entered into an agreement with the FSCS whereby, upon the WFS
Scheme becomung effecnve, the Company would make a payment to the FSCS for the compensaton of eligible
claimants and the FSCS would, from that point forward, pay eligible claimants 1n accordance with the FSA's
COMP rules  As part of the agreement reached with the FSCS, the Company wall contact all customers it
believes are eligible PPI claimants The arrangement with the FSCS 1nvolves certain payments totalling £90
mlhion being made to the FSCS, subject to certain adjustments Save for an amount of £2 malhon, any amount
of the payments to the FSCS not used to pay compensation and costs associated with paying compensation will
be repaid to the Company dunng a period of between approximately three years and seven years and three
months from the first day of the month following the date on which the WFS Scheme becomes effecuve This
could be a sigmficant amount, depending on a number of factors, including the number of claims that are made

The additional provisions created 1in 2010 of £24 9 million pnincipally relate to the Company’s and the FSCS’s
costs n operating the FSCS scheme

The FSCS covers claims 1n respect of PPI sold since 14 January 2005 and, as part of the agreement entered 1nto
by WFS with the FSCS, all potential claimants will be contacted and any claims will be administered by the
FSCS

The FSCS does not cover claims 1n respect of PP1 sold prior to 14 January 2005 (any hability relating to such
claims 15 referred to as an “Unprotected PPI Liability”) Therefore, pursuant to the terms of the WFS Scheme,
the Company has established a trust for the purpose of meeting any claims 1n respect of Unprotected PPI
Liabiliies It 1s intended that liabilities relating to all such claims, if they are vahd, be discharged in full The
amount held 1n trust was imtially £20 mulhon, but may be increased to £22 5 mllion or such higher amount as
may be agreed with the Creditors” Commuttee under the terms of the WFS Scheme Any balance that reverts to
the Company will be distnibuted subject to the terms of the WFS Scheme

The mmtial amount of £20 mill:on held on trust for the purpose of meeting claims in respect of PPI sold pnior to
14 January 2005 was determuned by reference to an informed estimate made by the Company as to the hkely
arount that would be needed to meet such clums That estimate tock account of the number of PPI policies sold
by Welcome prior to 14 January 2005, claims received to date, an esnmate of the number of claims which may
be made 1n the future and, 1f made, be vahd, and the average cost of redress to PPI purchasers with valid claims
within the relevant pool of PPI purchasers |

Details of the key sources of eshmation, uncertainty and judgement 1n relation to the PPI provision are set out 1n
note 1

41




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
(continued)

16 Financial instruments

The Company holds no derivatives and has not identified any embedded denvatives, which require separate
accounung for 1n accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recogmuon & measurement’

The following tables set out the carrying value of the Company’s financial assets and liabthties 1n accordance
with the categones of financial instruments set out 1n IAS 39  Assets and habilities outside the scope of IAS 39
are shown within non-financial assets / habiliues

Non-
financial
2010 Loans and  Amortised assets /
receivables cost liabilities Total
£000 £000 £°000 £2000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - - 508 508
Property, plant and equipment - - 2,352 2,352
Loans and receivables 424,072 - - 424,072
424,072 - 2,860 426,932
Current assets
Loans and receivables 310,403 - - 310,403
Trade and other receivables 3,364 - 554 3,918
Cash and cash equivalents 144,147 - - 144,147
457,914 - 554 458,468
Total assets 881,986 - 3414 885,400
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borrowings - 2,374,060 3,426 2,377,486
Trade and other payables - 14,431 3,614 18,045
Deferred income - - 9,777 9,777
Provisions - - 66,784 66,784
- 2,388,491 83,601 2,472,092
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - 40 1,822 1,862
Preference shares - 36,203 - 36,203
Deferred income - - 8,703 8,703
Provisions - - 18,636 18,636
- 36,243 29,161 65,404
Total liabilities - 2,424,734 112,762 2,537,496

42




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

(continued)

16 Financial instruments (continued)

Non-
financial
2009 Loans and Amorused assets /
receivables cost habilities Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangibie assets - - 921 921
Property, plant and equipment - - 4,282 4,282
Loans and receivables 716,533 - - 716,533
716,533 - 5,203 721,736
Current assets
Loans and receivables 489,253 ° - - 489,253
Trade and other receivables 3,242 - 609 3,851
Cash and cash equvalents 61,908 - - 61,908
554,403 - 609 555,012
Total assets 1,270,936 - 5812 1,276,748
LIABILITIES
Current habilites
Borrowings - 2,539,659 5,522 2,545,181
Trade and other payables - 21,396 4,798 26,194
Current tax habilites - - 1,170 1,170
Deferred income - - 12,416 12,416
Provisions - - 48,377 48,377
- 2,561,055 72,283 2,633,338
Non-current habilities
Borrowings - 621 5,013 5,634
Preference shares - 36,106 - 36,106
Deferred income - - 11,052 11,052
Provisions - - 53,560 53,560
- 36,727 69,625 106,352
Total liabilities - 2,597,782 141,908 2,739,690

Fair values of non-denvative financial mstruments

The following table summanses the carrying values and fair values of those financial instruments not recognised
in the Balance Sheet at fair value, except for those financial instruments (being intra-group loans and advances,
intra-group borrowings, trade and other recervables, cash and bank balances, bank overdrafts, trade and other
payables, preference shares and obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts) whose carrying
values approximate to their fair values The fair value of loans and receivables 1s disclosed 1n note 10

2010 2009
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
£000 £000 £000 £ 000
External borrowings 772 776 1,586 1,589

The fair value of external borrowings 1s calculated by discounting expected future cash flows Expected future

cash flows are derived using the borrowing’s fixed interest rate
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17 Share capital

a) Ordinary share capital
Authorised
2010 2009
Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000,000 100,000 100,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of 1p each 1,004,500 10 1,004,500 10
101,004,500 100,010 101,004,500 100,010
Allotted, called up and fully paid
2010 2009
Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000,000 100,000 100,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of 1p each 499,500 5 499,500 5
100,499,560 100,005 100,499,500 100,005

The nghts attached to the ordinary shares are as follows

Voting

On a show of hands every ordinary shareholder who 1s present in person at a general mecting of the Company
and every proxy appointed by an ordinary shareholder and present at a general meeting of the Company shall
have one vote and on a poll every ordinary shareholder who 1s present 1n person or by proxy shall have one vote
for every share held

Dividends

Subject to the preferential nghts attaching to the “A”, “B™ and irredeemable preference shares, ordinary
shareholders shall be entitled to receive such dividend as the Company by ordinary resolution may from time to
time declare as a final dividend (such dividend not to exceed the amount recommended by the Board) or as the
Board may from tirme to time declare as an intenm dividend

Return of capital on a winding-up

Subject to the preferential nghts artaching to the “A”, “B” and iredeemable preference shares, ordinary
shareholders are entitled to participate 1n any surplus assets on the winding-up of the Company 1n proportion to
their shareholdings
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17 Share capital {continued)

b) Preference share capital

Allotted, called up and fully

Authorised paid
Number of shares 2010 2009 2010 2009
“A” preference shares of 1p each 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
“B" preference shares of 1p each 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Irredeemable preference shares of 1p each 150,000,000 150,000,000 78,477,202 78,477,202

185,000,000 185,000,000 113,477,202 113,477,202

2010 2009
Carrying Nominal Carrying Nomnal
Allotted, called up and fully paid value value value value
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
“A” preference shares of 1p each 100 100 100 100
“B” preference shares of 1p each 2350 250 250 250
Irredeemable preference shares of 1p each 35,853 785 35,756 785
36,203 1,135 36,106 1,135

The nights attached to the preference shares are as follows

The “A” and “B” preference shares have the following nghts

To receive first out of profits a curnulative dividend at the rate of six-month sterling LIBOR per annum
on the amount paid up as to nomnal vatlue on each “A” or “B”, as applicable, preference share,
In a winding-up, to receive repayment of capital as to nominal value and any unpaid and accrued
dividends 1n preference to alt other classes of share, and
No nght to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, except where a resolution 1s to be
proposed

o  Abrogating, varying or mocifying any of the nghts of the holders of the “A” or “B”, as

applicable, preference shares, or
o Inrespect of a winding up of the Company, or
o Ifany “A” or “B”, as apphcable, preference dividend has been declared but not paid

The uredeemable preference shares have the following nghis

To recerve second cut of profits a cumulative preferenual dividend equal to twelve-month sterling
LIBOR plus 4 68% multiplied by £1 00, paid annually 1n arrears,

In a winding-up, to receive repayment of capital as to normnal value, any unpaid dividends and a further
£0 99 per wredeemable preference share 1n preference to all classes of share other than the “A” and *“B”
preference shares, and

No nght to attend and vote at general meeungs of the Company
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18 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option schemes

The ulumate parent company throughout 2010, Cattles, had a number of option schemes, being the Cattles
Executive Share Optton Scheme (1994), the Cattles Executive Share Option Scheme (1996) and the Cattles

Employee Sharesave Scheme

Certain employees, including directors, of the Company have outstanding options under these schemes as at

31 December 2010 as follows

Exercise price Exercise 2010 2009
Period granted (pence) period Number Number

Executive Share Option Schemes
2000 188 40 2003 - 2010 - 584
2001 189 68 — 241 30 2004 - 2011 15,184 15,184
2002 284 10 2005 - 2012 4,672 4,672
19,856 20,440

Employee Sharesave Scheme

2005 208 17 2010 - 2011 34,958 62,361
2007 25525 2010-2011 10,585 26,876
2007 255125 2012 -2013 32,980 68,386
2008 46 60 2011 - 2012 734,184 1,978,259
2008 46 60 2013 - 2014 1,385,262 3,730,068
2,197,969 5,865,950
2,217,825 5,886,390
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The outstanding share options may be analysed by a range of exercise prices as follows

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Range of exercise remaimng exercise remaining
exercise prices price Ife price hfe
(pence) (pence) Number {years) (pence) Number (years)
46 60 - 149 00 46.60 2,119,446 2.72 46 60 5,708,327 an
15000 -199 00 189.68 1,168 0.75 189 25 1,752 126
20000 - 249 00 217 65 48,974 0.38 21425 76,377 139
250 00 — 299 00 258 04 48,237 1.87 256 60 99,934 283
55.05 2,217,825 2.65 52138 5,886,390 368
The expected remaimng life of the share options equates to their remaiming contractual hife
A reconciliation of option movements during the year 1s shown below
2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Number (pence) Number {pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 5,886,390 52.38 15,971,073 54 58
Expired (3,668,565) 50.77 (10,084,683) 55 86
Outstanding at 31 December 2,217,825 55.05 5,886,390 5238
Exercisable at 31 December 100,509 149.33 20,440 246 62

No options were granted or exercised 1n the year (2009 mil)

As a consequence of the Group’s restructuning becomng effective on 2 March 2011, all of the Group’s share-

based payment plans have been terminated
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Shares issued under senior executive long-term incentive plans and staff Share Incentive Flan

Cattles also had a number of long-term incentive plans for senior executives, including the directors of the
Company Details of each plan are set out 1n the financial siatements of Cattles Dunng the year no shares were
awarded to directors and semor executives under the long-term incenuve plans (2009 ml)

Cattles also operated a Share Incentive Plan, which was open 1o all ehgible UK employees of the Company, and
was an HMRC-approved all-employee scheme Dunng the year no shares were awarded to the Company’s
employees under the Share Incentive Plan (2009 mil)

Fair value of share-based payments

The fair values of all share-based payments anising from share awards granted post 7 November 2002 have been
estimated using the Black-Scholes opton pricing model The assumptions used in the calculations are set out in
the financial statements of Cattles

The Company recogmsed a total charge of £mil (2009 £mI) relating to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions during the year

19 Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash inflow from continuing operations

2010 2009
£000 £000
Loss before taxation (189,712) {639,503)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 744 2,292
Impairment of tangible assets 502 9,726
(Profit) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (247) 214
Amortisation of intangible assets 408 3,587
Whnte off of intangible assets 5 569
Interest on preference shares 97 97
Decrease 1n loans and receivables 472,599 1,058,314
(Increase) / decrease 1n trade and other receivables (67) 4,552
Decrease in deferred income (4,988) (39,064)
Decrease 1n trade and other payables (8,149) (10,173)
(Decrease) / increase in provisions (16,517) 5,826
Cash inflow from operations 254,675 396,437

The amount of 1nterest paid and received (excluding that recogmsed 1n interest income) dunng the year was
£0 6 mullion (2009 £77 2 mlhion) and £0 5 million (2009 £5 8 nullion) respectively

The amount of preference dividends paid dunng the year was £ml (2009 £mil)
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20 Pension obligations

The Company 1s a member of the Cattles group, which, throughout 2010, operated both a defined benefit pension
plan and a number of defined contnbution pension plans

Defined benefit post-employment benefits plan

The defined benefit pension plan provides benefits based on final salary for certaun of the Company's current and
former employees The assets of the scheme are held 1n a separate trustee-admumstered fund Contnbutions to
the scheme are assessed 1n accordance with the advice of an independent qualified actuary using the projected
umt method The scheme was closed to new applicants from 1998 and closed to future service accrual 1n May
201@, following consultation with active members

The retirement benefit obligation 1s recognised 1n the Balance Sheet of the sponsonng employer, Cattles, the
ultimate parent of the Company during 2010

Further details on the valuaton of the total rehrement berefit obligation, including the assumptions upon which
the valuation 1s based, are set out in the financial statements of Cattles

Subsequent to the Group’s restructurning becoming effective on 2 March 2011, the Company, and other Group
members, are no longer participating employers 1n the defined benefit plan

Defined contribution post-employment benefit plans
The staff cost recogmsed for the year ended 31 December 2010 1n relation to defined contribution pension plans
1s £1 0 mullion (2009 £1 0 nullion)

21 Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date the Company had total future lease payments under non-cancetlable operating leases
as follows

2010 2009

Land and Motor Land and Motor
buldings vehicles buildings vehicles
£7000 £000 £7000 £000

Future lease payments
Within one year 2,698 941 4,145 2,451
Between one and five years 1,936 332 11,358 1,814
After five years 43 - 5,672 -
4,677 1,273 21,175 4,265

The following lease payments were recognised in the Income Statement dunng the year

Lease payments 3,727 3,444 6,064 3,176
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22 Financial risk management

Management of credit nsk

The Company acknowledges that the nsk ansing from changes in credit quality and the recoverability of loans 1s
inherent 1n the nature of its business Adverse changes 1n customers’ credit quality ansing from a general
detenioration 1n economuc conditions 1n the UK, such as higher interest rates, higher unemployment levels or
house price reductions, could affect the recoverability and value of the Company’s loans and receivables

The Company’s Board (the Board) sets standards for credit nsk management This 1s achieved through a
combination of governance structures, credit risk policies and credit systems and processes The Board has
delegated the authonity for implementing credit policy to the Company’s executive management Executive
management determine credit policy within the nsk appeute set by the Board by considenng and authonsing
recommendations proposed by the Credit Commuttee, which 1s responsible for evaluating credst policy and
product profitabihity Oversight 15 provided by the Risk Commuttee

The Company’s principal protections agaimnst credit risk 1in the Welcome business were its credit sconng and
underwriung processes Lending to new customers ceased after February 2009 A mimmal level of renewal
business was granted for the remainder of the year, before the decision was taken to not grant further lending on

16 December 2009

The nisk from a concentration of customer credit nisk 1s imited due to the relatively low value of each customer’s
debt and the Company’s large customer base

In the Company’s Shopacheck business, credit risk 1s managed through regular analysis of customers’ ability to
make repayments, and their credit linuts are amended accordingly

Credit nsk 1n relation to cash assets 1s managed by holding cash at a number of separate banks, to reduce

counterparty credit nsk

Liquidity risk - borrowings
The contractual matunties of the Company’s borrowings, cluding both capital and future finance charges
compnsing interest payments, are analysed below The amounts shown include future finance charges and

therefore differ from Company’s Balance Sheet

On Upto3 3-12 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5

2010 demand months months years years years years Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Other borrowings - 250 508 33 8 - - 799
Obligations under - 1,321 2,434 1,845 - - - 5,600
finance leases and
hire purchase
contracts
Intra-group
borrowings 2,373,328 - - - - - - 2373328
Total 2,373,328 1,571 2,942 1,878 8 - - 2,379,727
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Liquidity risk — borrowings (continued)

On Upto3 3-12 1-2 2-3 34 4-5

2009 demand months  months years years years years Total

£000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000
Other borrowings - 241 724 724 - - - 1,689
Obhigations under - 1,343 4,680 3,452 1,927 - - 11,402
finance leases and
hire purchase
contracts
Intra-group 2,538,604 - - - - - - 2,538,694
borrowings
Total 2,538,694 1,584 5,404 4,176 1,927 - - 2,551,785

The Company’s gross obligatons under finance lease and hire purchase contracts are as follows

2010 2009
£000 £000
Gross lease payments
Not later than one year 3,755 6,023
Later than one year but not more than five 1,845 5,379
5,600 11,402
Future finance charges (352) (867)
Present value of minimum lease payments 5,248 10,535

The above figures relate to motor vehucles acquired under hure purchase contracts and computer hardware
acquired under finance leases

Under the terms of the hire purchase agreements, no unguaranteed residual values are accruing to the Company
and no contingent rents are payable

Liquidity risk — obhgations under operating lease contracts
The matunty profiles of the contractual cash flows associated with the Company’s operating leases are
analysed below

Upto3 3-12 1-2 2-3 34 4-5 Over
months  meonths years years years years 5 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
2010 1,162 2,477 1,623 506 84 55 43 5,950
2009 1,799 4,797 4,944 3,550 2,759 1,919 5,672 25,440

Management of hquidity nsk

Ligquidity risk 1s the nisk to earnings or capital ansing from an inability to meet obligations when they become
due, without incurring unexpected or unacceptable losses It includes the nsk of mnability to manage unplanned
decreases or changes in funding sources and also any failure to recognise and address changes in market
conditions that could affect the Company’s abality to hquidate assets quickly, with mummum value loss, 1f
necessary

At 31 December 2010, intra-group borrowings were repayable on demand, however they were subject to the
agreements contained in the SEA and were not subject to repayment whilst the SEA conunued On 2 March
2011, the Group’s restructuning became effective, replacing the SEA An overview of the restructunng 15 set cut
on pages 4 to 10 of the Directors’ Report
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Management of capital risk
As a consequence of the events outlined in the Director’s Report capital nsk 15 not considered relevant or
significant enough to jusufy its own category

23 Contingent liabilities

The Company, together with other compames in the Cattles group, has entered into an unsecured multilateral
bank guarantee The directors consider that the farr value attached to the guarantee 1s £ml (2009 £nil)

At 31 Decernber 2010, the Company was an obligor of the Cattles SEA with the Group’s key financial credntors
At 31 December 2010, the Company had a contingent hability, as the Company could have been required, along
with other participating compames, to contribute to any settlement to the lenders of certazn syndicated and
bilateral bank faciliies to Cattles, certain guaranteed hedging counterparues, certain unguaranteed hedging
counterparties and holders of certain private placement notes and bonds 1ssued by Cattles The SEA was
termnated with effect from 2 March 2011, the date that the Group’s restructuring became effecuve Details of
the restructuring are set out on pages 4 to 10 of the Directors’ Report

Throughout 2010, the Company was a participating employer 1n the Cattles group defined benefit penston plan
The Company has a contingent Liability in the deficit on the pension scheme of £ml as at 31 December 2010
(20059 £17 6 mlhon) Subsequent to the Group’s restructunng becomung effecuve on 2 March 2011, the
Company 1s no longer a participaung employer 1n the Cattles Group defined benefit pension plan

24 Related party transactions

Ultimate parent undertaking
Throughout 2010, the vltimate parent undertaking and controlhng party of the Company was Cattles, registered
1 England and Wales

The largest and smallest Group 1n which the 2010 results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by
Cattles

As a consequence of the Group’s restructuring which became effective on 2 March 2011, details of which are set
out in the Darectors” Report, Bovess Holding Linuted 1s now the Company’s ulumate parent undertaking,
although the directors consider there to be no ultimate controlling party

Related party transactions

Duning the year the Company entered 1nto a number of related party transactions with 1ts ulamate and immediate
parent companies and 1ts fellow subsidiary undertakings, as outiined below in the narrative and the following
table

* The Company has borrowings from Cattles, for which a financing charge was levied each month Thas
charge was based upon the ultimate parent’s average cost of borrowing

e The Company employed the services of a fellow subsidiary undertaking for certain debt collecuon
acuvities for which a fee was levied This fee was denved on an arm’s length bass

¢ The Company paid a management fee to Cattles in relation to recerving certain central services, such as
mternal audit This management fee was calculated on a cost incurred basis

¢ The Company levied management charges for the provision of IT services to Cattles and a fellow
subsidiary undertaking The charges were calculated on a cost mncurred basis

¢ Dunng the year the Company’s main office was rented from a fellow subsidiary undertaking at a
market-based rent

¢ The Company adminstered the payroll of the Cattles group Payroll costs were recharged to the
Cattles and fellow Group compames The Company did not make any charge for providing these
Services
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2010 2000
£000 £7000
Repayment of funds (167,266) (420,121)
Inter-company finance charge 105516 142,013
Debt collection charges 3,739 1,441
Management fee — central services 865 1,737
Management charge — IT services 283 1,332
Office rental 746 789
Related party supplers
AlixPartners Linuted 3,659 1,155
Collinson Grant Limuted 574 58
HAP Lirmted 227 -
Meadway Consulting Limited 365 -

Receivables due from and payables to Cattles and the immedate parent compames and fellow subsidiary
undertakings are disclosed 1n notes 10 and 13 respectively

Amounts included 1n trade and other payables (note 14) in respect of the related party suppliers were
AlhxPartners Lirmted £ml (2009 £ml), Colhnson Grant Limuted £ml (2009 £58,099), HAP Limuted £ml (2009
£ml) and Meadway Consulting Limited £ml (2009 £ml)

Key management compensation
The following table provides details of certain key management costs, which have been borne by the Company’s
parent, Cattles

2010 2009 |
£'000 £000 '
Short-terin employee benefits 3,247 3,324
Post-employment benefits 60 279
3,307 3,603

Key management are the directors of the Company and members of the Company’s Executive Commuttee

Excluding the directors, as at 31 December 2010, who are compensated by another Company, 209,737 shares
were notionally held in respect of key management at 31 December 2010 (2009 415,686} 1n respect of share
mncenuve arrangements Dunng the year no shares (2009 ml) were awarded to key management under these
schemes
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25 Post balance sheet events

On 31 January 2011, Cattles announced that, at both a Court Meeting and a General Meeting of Cattles
Sharehelders held earler that day 1n connection with the recommended acquisition of Cattles by Bovess by way
of a scheme of arrangement 1n accordance with Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Scheme’), both
resolutions were passed by the requisite majorities of Cattles Shareholders

On 1 Febmary 2011, Cattles announced that, at the Court-convened meetings of the creditors of Cattles, the
Company and Ewbanks held earher that day 1n connection with the proposed restructunngs of Cattles, the
Company and Ewbanks by way of schemes of arrangement m accordance with Part 26 of the Compames Act
2006 (the ‘Credutor Schemes’), all the necessary resolutions were passed by the relevant classes of their
respective creditors by the requisite majorities  Completion of the restructunng remains subject to the
sansfacton of other conditions, including the Court sancuonng the Cattles shareholder scheme (the *‘Shareholder
Scheme’) and the Creditor Schemes

On 28 February 201!, Cattles announced that the High Court of Justice of England and Wales (the ‘Court’) had
sanctioned the scheme of arrangement to effect the recommended proposal for the acqusition of Cattles by
Bovess and sanctioned the schemes of arrangement between each of Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks and
certain of their respective creditors  All of these schemes of arrangement were expected to become effective
shortly, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions

On 2 March 2011, Cattles announced that the scheme of arrangement to effect the recommended proposal for the
acquisition of Cattles by Bovess had become effective Cattles also announced that the schemes of arrangement
between each of Cattles, the Company and Ewbanks and certain of their respective creditors had become
effective In addition, an apphcation had been made to the UK Listing Authonty requesting the cancellation of
the histing of Cattles shares on the Official List as well as trading of Cattles shares on the London Stock
Exchange's mam market for listed secunties Cancellation was expected to take place by 8 00 am on Monday 7
March 2011 The consideration of 1p per Cattles share to be paid by Bovess to Catiles shareholders pursuant to
the acquisition was expected to be despatched (in the case of certificated holders of Cattles shares) or settled n
CREST (in the case of uncertificated holders of Catiles shares) by 16 March 2011 An overview of the key
elements of the restructuning 1s set out above on pages 4 to 10

On 7 March 2011 Cattles” shares were de-listed from the London Stock Exchange and it was re-registered as a
private imited company On 5 Apnl 2011 Cattles” debt secunities (bonds) were de-hsted
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